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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH REFBEIEMNR ([BIER])FE
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
EXCHANGE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate Bl ¥R ENMN AR EEMERL F T L
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than TH R AISE AR SR ERRH QD aIEH —
other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors EMmHIMH - AEREMALTETHELER
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies % % A 7 ) 7& 72 &\ k& - 17 & 48 48 25 18 J& 5E Y
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful £ E#& HEHIRERTE - Bl ERNEK = A
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of RHEMIFERRAIZERKESZERHE M=
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other &R &% °

sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a HIRAIFE R £ A B F B &R A Al
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high ¥R EZEHNBHFALERATNEFT 2 EBFH
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no FA & KK 5KEE R @ [ EERE
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securites AR EENZLSHESRBENTES
traded on GEM.
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Financial Highlights

As at 31 December As at 30 June
2015 2014 2014 2013 2012 2011
R+=A=1+-H WAA=1AH
-1 —E-mE —E-mF —E-=4Ff CE--f —Z--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FEL FEL T ThAT
Results ES
- Revenue — s 217,068 25,865 3,792 3,066 3,003 3,124
- Loss -B#E (81,455) (10,571) (2,055) (2,662) (2,752) (2,565)
- Loss per share -EBkEE
- Basic (in HK cents) —EAR (L) (2.07) (0.33) (0.07) (0.09) (0.09) (0.09)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE7) (E5) (FE5) (mEF) (mE5)
Financial Position BERR
- Non-current assets —¥RBEE 57,275 3,446 - = 1 2
- Current assets -REBEE 26,486 34,758 4,717 6,717 10,328 12,005
- Current liabilities -nEaE 3,244 1,063 1,105 1,050 2,000 1,016
- Equity ~ER 80,517 37,141 3,612 5,667 8,329 11,081
Financial Ratios BHLE
- Current assets/Current liabilities -hRBEE/TPAR 8 33 4 6 5 12
- Assets/Equity -BE /% 1.0 1.0 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1
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FERE
Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited JRERELREEE R AR (“Global
Strategic” or the “Company”), we are pleased to report the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$217 million, compared
with approximately HK$26 million in previous six-month year-
ended period. Loss for the year was approximately HK$81.5 million,
compared with loss of approximately HK$10.6 million in previous six-
month year-ended period. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had
bank balances and cash amounting to approximately HK$25 million.

During the year of 2015, one placing activity has been proceeded to
strengthen our liquidity and bargaining power, as well as effectively
utilize for seeking new opportunities, possible projects and daily
operation. During the year, the Group has acquired an IT solution
business as well as invested resources in the natural gas acquisition
in Yichang which was not completed prior to 31 December 2015.
Upon completion of the Yichang Acquisition, the development of the
Company will be enhanced as well as the shareholders’ wealth.

As for the commodities trading business is in a competitive challenge
environment with low price in global market, Global Strategic also
explore more new revenue streams in IT business and energy
resource aspect, but not limit to natural gas. These opportunities
as well as challenges to the Group successively. The Group was
able to maintain a positive financial position during the year with
no bank borrowings due to the Group’s prudent management
style and flexibility to suit in the highly rival market. The Group
will be continued to apply expenses management prudently on
daily operation and suitable investment opportunities as well as
expanding the source of income and generating assured cash flow.
We emphasis that all sectors are build up by trustworthy and with
competent expertise, and supported by government policies.

BEALAR

RAZERRRRBBEEBEEGR AR ([FTRX
gl X [AR2rEF(TEX])E ([EF
) MAERARRREMBAR (A8 [
SEDBE_FT-AF+-_A=1T—HL#F
B2 BERFEME

REB WA A217,000,00078 7T » ¥ £
18 A 4 45 295 B 49 526,000,00078 7T © F A &5
$E#981,500,00078 7T + ¥ _E /< A F 45 HA R
HIIE51E#910,600,000/8 L R=ZZT—HF+=
A=+—H AEE2RTEHBERESOA
25,000,000/ JT °
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ER-BPEENRERTT A FE B
REEERFRESFZ21TE-
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Chairman’s Statement

Welcome New Board Member

The Board would like to welcome to Ms. LEUNG Tsz Man, Mr. SUN
Zhi Jun (independent non-executive Director) and Ms. HUANG Yu
Jun (independent non-executive Director). All of the members are
responsible, energetic, wide network of business connections, and
would prove to make an all-out effort and benefit to the Group and
the shareholders’ interest.

At last, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our
directors, senior management and staff for their support. The Group
shall adopt prudence but enterprising strategies approach in coming
future. We would also like to present our most sincere appreciation
to the shareholders of the Company and business partners for their
ongoing trust and support to Global Strategic.

WEI Yue Tong
Chairman

19 February 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &%}
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BEENWmR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$217,068,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2015 as compared to approximately
HK$25,865,000 for the financial period from 1 July 2014 to 31
December 2014. The Group commenced its commodity trading
business in December 2014 and it contributed to approximately
99.9% and 96.2% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2015 and the financial period from 1 July 2014 to 31
December 2014 respectively.

The Group’s solutions and technical consultation on e-commerce
integration and application customisation business (“IT Solutions
Business”) continued facing severe challenges during the year
and the Group has been actively searching for other business
opportunities so as to diversify the Group’s IT Solutions Business
into a new line of business with growth potential and to broaden
its source of income that can bring return to its shareholders. On
6 November 2015, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in
Logo Plus Limited for a cash consideration of HK$9,000,000. Logo
Plus Limited is principally engaged in operating a mobile app and
online sales channel for customer-designed printed garments. The
Company expects that the integration of the Group’s information
technology based capabilities and Logo Plus Limited’s mobile app
and online sales channel will generate long term value to the Group.

Analysis on the performance of the Group including revenue and
results of commodities trading business and IT business before
allocation of the corporate overheads is set out in note 7 “Revenue
and Segment Information” to the consolidated financial statements.

The total operating expenses for the year was approximately
HK$81,853,000 as compared to approximately HK$11,575,000
for the financial period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014,
which was mainly attributable to the legal and professional fees of
approximately HK$5,654,000 incurred for the acquisitions as well as
the staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) of approximately
HK$47,932,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015.

g Y& 3 JE)

HE_ZT-—AF+_A=Z+—HLEE &&
E 2 W4 A217,068,0008 7T T —Z—M
FLtA—BHE-ZT-—WNE+-_A=+—AZ
B 75 HARE B 49 525,865,000 7T e NEE R —
T NF+_AFAREERB S XS &
BREE-_T—RAF+A=1+—BHLFE
FZE—NF+tA—HE-_ZT—EHF+_A
=+— A ZHBEES B R A 5 B ik & R
#799.9% £ 96.2% °

FR AEEHRETFTHEESRERERRE
HAEK T R R TR 2 5% ([ BB A
RPFRERBEOHBREER ~NEE—
EREGRYEHMEE UWHEAEEEME
BRATREBZAGRREBENNFEBR
RBERWARR  #E BERESRER-
R-ZE—AF+—A~H AEBWELogo
Plus Limited % R - 3R £ ({8 /29,000,000
7T ° Logo Plus Limited = ER EEE TR
PR RODEEMRENTSDEAERRE L
HERBE -ARAE  BEAKEZEER
firBE 51 & Logo Plus Limited#y 7 8 fE A 72 =0
RBLEERE BAAEBTRREEE

AEENERSNORERARSEBRE
MBI R W R (P RIEA AR S
B) - BANG A B BN T (KSR DR
A -

FREE B Y% 481,853,000 7T R
—E-NFEtA—HEZZ—HWNF+=A
T — B2 BEMEALA11,575,000%
T hEERRAEE - E-HE+-_A=+—
AEFERBBESEEECEEREXEER
#75,654,0008 TIA R EIKA (BREESH
B ) #947,932,000/8 JT °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
HK$81,455,000, compared with loss of approximately
HK$10,571,000 for financial period from 1 July 2014 to 31
December 2014.

ACQUISITION OF 49% EQUITY INTEREST
IN YICHANG ZHONGYOU (“YICHANG
ACQUISITION?”)

On 16 January 2015, the Company entered into a memorandum of
understanding with & & F B R A RFIFAER A F (Yichang Zhongyou
Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Zhongyou”), j#1t1Z g1
KRB AMR AR (Hubei Biaodian Natural Gas Co., Ltd.*) (“Hubei
Biaodian” and formerly known as it KEERATFBERE IR
7] (Hubei Tianneng Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd.)) and Mr. Xiong
Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”), the ultimate controlling shareholder of both
Hubei Biaodian and Yichang Zhongyou in relation to the possible
Yichang Acquisition.

On 23 April 2015, an equity transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”) was entered into among Hong Kong Global Billion
Access Investments Limited (the “Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Hubei Biaodian and Mr. Xiong,
pursuant to which the Purchaser shall acquire from Hubei Biaodian
49% of the equity interest in Yichang Zhongyou at the consideration
(the “Consideration”) of HK$100 million.

On 12 June 2015, the Company issued a circular relating to the
Acquisition (the “Circular”). Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited,
the controlling shareholder of the Company has given written
approval to the Equity Transfer Agreement and the Acquisition. The
written approval has been accepted in lieu of holding a general
meeting pursuant to Rule 19.44 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

On 17 September 2015, the Purchaser, the Vendor and Mr. Xiong
entered into a first supplemental agreement to change the payment
terms of the installment of the Consideration and amend certain
terms and conditions of the Equity Transfer Agreement (the “First
Supplemental Agreement”).

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &%}
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BEENWmR O
Management Discussion and Analysis

On 9 December 2015, the Purchaser, the Vendor and Mr. Xiong
entered into a second supplemental agreement of the Acquisition to
amend the termination clause and certain terms and conditions of
the Equity Transfer Agreement (as amended and supplemented by
the First Supplemental Agreement).

The business scope of Yichang Zhongyou includes investment in
natural gas project, provision of natural gas technology consultation
services and sales of natural gas cooking appliance and accessories.
Yichang Zhongyou has been granted the approval to construct
and operate the first phase of a natural gas project in Zhijiang City,
Hubei Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by Hubei
Provincial Development and Reform Commission (j#t& 3% & Fl2h &

Z8®).

Upon completion of the Yichang Acquisition, Yichang Zhongyou will
be regarded as being controlled by the Group in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies and Yichang Zhongyou will become a
49% indirectly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Further details of the business and financial information of Yichang
Zhongyou have been set out in the Circular.

As at the date hereof, the Yichang Acquisition was not completed.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group follows a policy of prudence in managing its working
capital. The Group did not have any bank borrowings as at 31
December 2015. Operation was primarily financed by internally
generated cashflows and external financing.

During the year, the Group had no material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2015.

R-ZB-—RAF+-_ANA -BXH -BHRREL
AT WBEEEWE — D HhE UERT
PR B 53 W e 2 AR LE 16 SUUA IR T 16 R I 16
H(RE—DEFEBRET LM
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REXARKMBARS  ARFEERAR
RRAAREMF -BEETHECERILE ER
MREZESH A AJRFEARKM
(THRE)AIEER IR REEE
RARIEAR -

ERESRBERE REAKE 2 5K
R HEPHBEAIEARNEEZES BES
TR A AR AN R RMG49% A 2 R KT B A
=

BEREET Rz EBRMBER ZE—TH

RAREAH BEERBERAERTM
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FEEBREFEERRUNEBALEES N
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Share Subdivision

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 9 January
2015, each existing issued share of the Company of HK$0.1 each
was subdivided into twenty (20) subdivided shares of the Company
of HK$0.005 each (“Share Subdivision”) and the authorised shares
capital of the Company has become HK$80 million divided into
16,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.005 each (“Shares”) of which
3,600,000,000 are in issue and fully paid or credit as fully paid. The
Share Subdivision became effective on 12 January 2015.

Placing of Shares

On 16 January 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Jin Hung Securities Limited (as the placing agent) for the placing
(the “Placing”) of up to 360,000,000 Shares of HK$0.005 each in
the share capital of the Company at the placing price of HK$0.354
per placing Share (the “Placing Agreement”). The aggregate nominal
value of the Shares issued under the Placing is HK$1,800,000. The
Placing was completed on 30 January 2015 and an aggregate of
360,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued to not less than six
investors, who and their respective ultimate beneficial owners are
individual investors, being third parties independent of the Company
and its connected persons (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules).
Following the completion of the Placing, the Company had an
aggregate 3,960,000,000 Shares in issue.

The closing price of the Shares was HK$0.405 per Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the date of the Placing Agreement. The
net proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$124.8 million
have been utilised as to (i) approximately HK$37.4 million and HK$25
million was used as the working capital for the commodity trading
business and for the Group’s general working capital respectively;
and (i) approximately HK$35 million was used as part of the initial
payment for the consideration of the Acquisition. The unutilised
net proceed of HK$27.4 million is intended to apply as part of the
payment of the consideration of the Acquisition.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &%}
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Shares Subscription

On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (as amended and supplemented by the two supplemental
agreements dated 26 November 2015 and 9 December 2015
respectively) (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Mr. Kan Che Kin,
Billy Albert (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 1,695,000,000 ordinary shares
(the “Subscription Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$0.035
per Subscription Share (the “Subscription”). The Subscription is
conditional upon, among other things, the completion of the Yichang
Acquisition. The subscription price of the Subscription in the total
amount of HK$59,325,000 shall be payable by the Subscriber to
the Company in cash upon completion of the Subscription. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$58.8 million will be utilised as
to () HK$37.6 million for settlement of part of the consideration
for the Yichang Acquisition; and (i) approximately HK$21.2 million
for the Group’s general working capital. The Subscription was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting held on 11 January 2016. Please refer
to the Company’s announcements dated 29 September 2015, 26
November 2015 and 9 December 2015 as well as circular of the
Company dated 17 December 2015 for the detailed information on
the Subscription.

As at the date hereof, the Subscription was not completed.
PROSPECT

The Company reiterates its commitment to maximizing shareholder
value. The Group will continue to review its strategic directions
and operations in order to chart its long term corporate strategy
and growth. Apart from the existing commodity trading and IT
businesses, the Directors consider the Group’s investment in the
natural gas business, upon completion of the Yichang Acquisition,
offers enormous opportunities to enhance the Group’s future growth
and development in the energy and resources sector in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi, Macau Pataca and United States dollars.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 28 staff members.
Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms and
the performance, qualifications and experience of the individual
employee. Remuneration includes monthly salaries, performance-
linked bonuses, retirement benefits schemes and other benefits
such as medical scheme and share option scheme. The Group’s
remuneration policies and packages are reviewed by management
on regular basis. The Company has established a Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee. The Directors’ emoluments are
determined with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
the operating performance of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. WEI Yue Tong

Mr. WEI, aged 55, has been the Chairman of the Company and an
executive Director since 16 October 2014. Mr. WEI is the president
of Global News Times (JRIEK¥TEEEAL) , a print magazine and an
online media platform of global news and advertisements in the PRC
and the chairman of Shenzhen New Front Culture Communication
Company Limited ORI &R L EEABR AR ), a multi-media
marketing and public relations company in Shenzhen, the PRC.
He is also the chairman of Universal Television Limited established
in February 2014 by Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation
Company Limited, a company owned as to 90% by Mr. WEI and the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. WEI has experience in
the industry of multi-media and public relations in the PRC as well as
business investment and development.

Mr. WENG Lin Lei

Mr. WENG, aged 45, has been the executive Director since
16 October 2014. Mr. WENG holds a Bachelor Degree of Urban
Planning from Tongji University, the PRC. He is a director of Hotex
Holding Limited, a company engaged in commodity trading and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. WENG has experience
in resources trading industry.

Mr. FAN Wei Guo

Mr. FAN, aged 52, has been an executive Director since 3 October
2014. Mr. FAN has experience in investment management and
resources management. He was an executive director of North
Mining Shares Company Limited (Stock Code: 433, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange), until his resignation on 1
March 2013.
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Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng

Mr. JP ZHENG, aged 33, has been an executive Director since
3 October 2014. Mr. JP ZHENG holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration in Accounting from The Open University
of Hong Kong and a Master Degree of Laws from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr. JP ZHENG is currently an executive director of China
Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8132,
a company listed on GEM). Mr. JP ZHENG had been an executive
director and the chief executive officer of a PRC based property
developing company from 1 April 2012 to October 2014. Prior
to that, Mr. JP ZHENG had been the financial controller of China
Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited (Stock Code: 8116, formerly
known as China Public Healthcare (Holding) Limited, a company
listed on GEM), for the period from 1 March 2010 to 31 March
2012. Mr. JP ZHENG has auditing experience in two international
accountants firms. He was an executive director of Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited, a company previously listed on GEM. He is the
son of Mr. ZP ZHENG.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

Ms. LEUNG Tsz Man

Ms. LEUNG, aged 39, has been an executive Director since 24
August 2015. Ms. LEUNG holds a Master of Business Administration
from University of South Australia. She is a member of each the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. She is also the
company secretary and financial controller of the Company. Ms.
LEUNG serves as a senior consultant of Hotex Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company which is wholly-owned by
Mr. WENG Lin Lei, an executive Director.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping

Mr. ZP ZHENG, aged 63, has been the non-executive Director since
16 October 2014. Mr. ZP ZHENG graduated from the Party School
of the CPC Guangdong Provincial Committee, the PRC (Fh L EH
L ZER) . He is currently the managing director of a PRC based
property developing, and the vice president of Global News Times
(IRERFERF) , a print magazine and an online media platform
of global news and advertisements in the PRC. Mr. ZP ZHENG has
experience in the industry of property development and media and
publication. He is the father of Mr. JP ZHENG.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. CHIU Wai Piu

Mr. CHIU, aged 68, has been the independent non-executive
Director since 16 October 2014. Mr. CHIU is an experienced
and reputable journalist and has over 40 years of experience in
journalism. He has been a senior research officer in “One Country
Two Systems Research Institute”. Mr. CHIU has been the founding
treasurer and the chairman of the “Hong Kong Federation of
Journalists”. In 2006, he was elected as the vice secretary — general
and treasurer of the “Hong Kong Federation of Journalists” (the
“HKFJ”); and he was also elected as the director-general in 2009
and the vice secretary in 2015. Mr. CHIU served as an independent
non-executive director of Jiwa Bio-Pharm Holdings Limited (now
known as U-Home Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 2327, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from
September 2008 to September 2013. From September 2004 to
November 2011, he served as an independent non-executive
director of Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 309, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. CHIU
is currently an independent non-executive director of the Gold Tat
Group International Limited (stock code: 8266, a company listed on
GEM). Addchance Holdings Limited (stock code: 3344, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and PetroAsian
Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 850, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange).
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Ms. KWAN Sin Yee

Ms. KWAN, aged 53, has been the independent non-executive
Director since 16 October 2014. Ms. KWAN is the wealth director
of FWD Life Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited and the director
and chief executive officer of Roots Management Co. Ltd., an
executive wealth management services company in Hong Kong. Ms.
KWAN has experience in insurance industry in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. Ms. KWAN devoted herself in charity and she is currently
the committee member and vice-president of the examination
committee of the Hong Kong CU Movement Charity Fund. From
January 2016, Ms. KWAN is also the chairman and chief executive
officer of World Amateur Golf Championships Limited.

Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin

Mr. LEUNG, aged 35, has been the independent non-executive
Director since 16 October 2014. Mr. LEUNG holds a Bachelor
Degree of Commerce in Accounting and Finance from the University
of Toronto in Canada. Mr. LEUNG is the deputy general manager
of TL Property Consultants International Ltd. (“TLP”), a consultancy
group principally engaged in project management and consultancy
in the real estate sector. Prior to joining TLP, he had worked at a
multinational accounting and auditing firm for about 8 years. Mr.
LEUNG is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Mr. SUN Zhi Jun

Mr. SUN, aged 48, has been an independent non-executive Director
since 24 August 2015. Mr. SUN graduated from Shanghai Medical
Instrumentation College in the PRC in 1988. Mr. SUN is currently the
business development director of Tonbright Finance Leasing Co. Ltd.
(RAEHEHEE (LB)BMRAGF), a transportation financing and
leasing company focusing on the provision of automobile financing
services in the PRC.

Ms. HUANG Yu Jun

Ms. HUANG, aged 57, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 24 August 2015, She is currently a financial manager
of a branch office of Shanghai Electric International Economic &
Trading Co., Ltd. (E/BERBEBRLEEZ S HR A, a subsidiary
of Shanghai Electric Group Company Limited (stock code: 2727,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Ms.
HUANG obtained a certificate of accounting profession from Ministry
of Finance in the PRC. In 2005, she graduated from Shanghai TV
University (now known as Shanghai Open University) in the PRC with
a professional certificate in business administration.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 44.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the reporting period are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution or dividend payment the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividends can be distributed out of the profits, special
reserve and share premium of the Company. The Company’s reserve
available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2015
amounted to approximately HK$66,987,000 (2014: HK$18,715,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors:

Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Chairman
Mr. WENG Lin Lei
Mr. FAN Wei Guo
Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng
Ms. LEUNG Tsz Man
(appointed on 24 August 2015)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHIU Wai Piu
Ms. KWAN Sin Yee
Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin
Mr. SUN Zhi Jun
(appointed on 24 August 2015)
Ms. HUANG Yu Jun
(appointed on 24 August 2015)
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. LEUNG Tsz Man, Mr. SUN Zhi Jun and Ms. HUANG
Yu Jun will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. CHIU Wai Piu, Mr.
LEUNG Oh Man, Martin and Ms. KWAN Sin Yee will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

No director has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors has a service contract with the Company for
a term of up to the date on which he/she shall retire by rotation in
an annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
companies or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors in the shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)) which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”) pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (continued)

1.

Interests in the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company held by the

Directors and chief executives of the Company:

Directly

beneficially

Name of Director owned
H#E

BEEnE ERESR
Mr. WEI Yue Tong 135,000,000

RAELE
Mr. WENG Lin Lei -

SRERE

Note: As at 31 December 2015, 2,160,429,580 shares of the
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Through
controlled
corporation
BB
24 EE

2,160,429,580
(Note)

(HM5E)
2,160,429,580
(Note)

(HM5E)

Company were held by Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited,
a company incorporated in Samoa with limited liability and is
wholly-owned by Global Strategic Fund Holdings Limited, which
in turn is owned as to 49% of its issued share capital by Hotex
Holdings Limited and as at 51% of its issued share capital by
Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited.
Hotex Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. WENG Lin Lei.
Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited
is owned by Mr. WEI Yue Tong, as to 90% of its issued share
capital and by Mr. Zheng Zhu Ping, as to 10% of its issued share

capital.
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FARARD RARERND ZFR 8% :

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Total share capital
HEBITREAZ

R Bt =
2,295,429,580 57.97%
2,160,429,580 54.56%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (continued)

2.

Interests in Associated Corporation of the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in Liang
Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited held by
a Director:

Name of Director Capacity
BEEnE g7

Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping
B4 5 A

Beneficial owner

BB A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of
the Directors had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Exchange pursuant to the required standard
of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

EECESEERIRARE (#)

RAQARHEEEE 2 #E&

TREBINEEMEME —EBRESS

BERABIZITE 4R :
Approximate
percentage
Number of the issued
of shares share capital
HEBITREZ
RHEA B =
11,666,667 10%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than the

Directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the  Hi*
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of shareholder

BRERER

Global Strategic (Holding)
Group Limited

IRMEE (ER) SEER QA

Global Strategic Fund
Holdings Limited

BHREBRESERERAF

Hotex Holdings Limited

BEEEARAT

Liang Tan Yi Xing International
Foundation Company Limited

ME—E2BBEESEER QA

Mr. KAN Che Kin, Billy Albert

BERLELE

Capacity

8%

Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

Interest in controlled corporation

REHEEE R
Interest in controlled corporation

REHEEER
Interest in controlled corporation

PR E B
Beneficial owner

BEmBEAA

H.|,
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Number of
shares

R&HEE

2,160,429,580
(Note 1)
(H$&E1)
2,160,429,580
(Note 1)
(H$&E1)
2,160,429,580
(Note 1)
(M$&E1)
2,160,429,580
(Note 1)
(H$&E1)
1,695,000,000
(Note 2)
(Mf&E2)

E-AF+T-A=t—"H REFEHFR
GEPIEIBBIHRRERRTATEFEZER
fpracex - THAL (RRAREFRITHARE
BRINRARB Z AR HA L

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

e BT
IR A L 2

54.56%

54.56%

54.56%

54.56%

42.80%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Note:

Global Strategic (Holding) Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Samoa with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Global Strategic
Fund Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned as to 49% of its issued
share capital by Hotex Holdings Limited and as at 51% of its issued
share capital by Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company
Limited. Hotex Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. WENG Lin Lei.
Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company Limited is owned
by Mr. WEI Yue Tong, as to 90% of its issued share capital and by Mr.
ZHENG Zhu Ping, as to 10% of its issued share capital. Accordingly,
each of Global Strategic Fund Holdings Limited, Hotex Holdings
Limited and Liang Tan Yi Xing International Foundation Company
Limited are deemed to be interested in the 2,160,429,580 shares of
the Company under the SFO.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Mr. Kan Che Kin, Billy Albert (as the “Subscriber”)
dated 29 September 2015 (as supplemented and amended by two
supplemental agreements dated 26 November 2015 and 9 December
2015 respectively), the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue 1,695,000,000 ordinary shares (the “Subscription Share(s)”),
representing approximately 42.80% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 and approximately 29.97% of the
issued share capital of Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the Subscription Shares upon completion of the subscription,
at the subscription price of HK$0.035 per Subscription Share. The
subscription has not yet completed as at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, no person had any interest or short

position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

according to the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2015.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,

warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2015 and there

had been no exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants

or similar rights during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). As at 31 December 2015, no option has
been granted by the Company under the Scheme. Particulars of
the Scheme are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group. Under the
Scheme, the Directors may grant options to any eligible persons
of the Group, including (i) any director, employee or consultant of
the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i) any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include any director, employee
or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iii) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant
of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv) any person or
entity whose service to the Group or business with the Group
contribute or is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group as may be determined by the directors from time to
time, to subscribe for shares of the Company. Options granted are
exercisable for a period of up to ten years from the date of grant of
the option as decided by the board.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i) the
nominal value of share; (i) the closing price per share as stated in
the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day and (iii) the average closing
price per share as stated in the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which the options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme.
However, the total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the last date of such
12-month period from time to time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. No option under the Scheme has been
granted by the Company since its adoption.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continued)

On 31 December 2015, the total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Scheme is 300,000,000 shares of
HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the Company, representing
approximately 7.58% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the Scheme for the holding of an option before
it can be exercised. There is no consideration for the application or
acceptance of an option under the Scheme. The remaining life of
the Scheme is approximately seven years and to be expired on 30
November 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 100% of the turnover of the Group and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for about 59.4% of the total
turnover.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for approximately 100% of the purchases of the Group and the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for about 59.5% of the total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any business or interest which competed
or might compete with the business of the Group nor had any other
conflict of interest with the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wei Yue Tong
CHAIRMAN

19 February 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules in the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Required
Standard during the year ended 31 December 2015.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules,
and considers that the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 17.50(B) OF THE GEM LISTING
RULES

With effect from 24 August 2015, Ms. Leung Tsz Man has been
appointed as an executive Director and each of Mr. Sun Zhi Jun
and Ms. Huang Yu Jun has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the audit committee, the
human resources and remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Board. Details of the above changes are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 24 August 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board held 26
meetings to review, among other matters, the Group’s financial
and operating performance and discuss the business direction and
strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS Exe
Details of the composition and the attendance of the Board are as Z=E=@ZAHAR L #H2 BFEIE AT :
follows:

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings held
during the tenure
of his/her office

in the year
HERE,EA
EHERET
SERY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Chairman RAEZEXE F/E 26/26
Mr. WENG Lin Lei SRETE 26/26
Mr. FAN Wei Guo SRR A 26/26
Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng* B2 IS o A 26/26
Ms. LEUNG Tsz Man (appointed on 24 August 2015) BTN+ 11/11
(RZE—RAFNAZ+HBEEZMT)
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping* L I o o 26/26
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHITES
Mr. CHIU Wai Piu EHELAE 25/26
Ms. KWAN Sin Yee BERLZt 26/26
Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin R EAE 25/26
Mr. SUN Zhi Jun (appointed on 24 August 2015) AREFELE 11/11
(RZE—RFENAZtTUBEZMT)
Ms. HUANG Yu Jun (appointed on 24 August 2015) FELEELZT 11/11
(RZE—RAFNA-+THBEEZMT)
* Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng is the son of Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping. BRI EEABMEREZRF

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the ZBEZEEABHNAFEREISEI8E[E
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages SZkaEBERE/EN| —5-
15 to 18 in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up
to the date of this report, Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Mr. WENG Lin Lei,
Mr. FAN Wei Guo, Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng, Ms. LEUNG Tsz Man,
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping, Mr. CHIU Wai Piu, Ms. KWAN Sin Yee, Mr.
LEUNG Oh Man, Martin, Mr. SUN Zhi Jun and Ms. HUANG Yu
Jun engaged in business activities in their respective fields as
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to the
Board remain informed and relevant. Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng, Ms.
LEUNG Tsz Man and Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin have participated
in continuous professional development programs required by The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Directors
also participated in other trainings and professional developments
such as attending seminars, studying reading materials relating to
the Group or its industries and businesses; rules and regulations;
business management; or the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

CHAIRMAN

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for setting
its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by other
directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The non-executive Director of the Company was appointed for a
term of up to about 3 years ending on the date on which the director
shall retire by rotation at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Code and the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Human Resources
and Remuneration Committee (“Remuneration Committee”) held 4
meetings. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved
the Group’s remuneration policy, including that for the executive
Directors, and the levels of remuneration paid to executive directors
and senior management of the Group. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee follow the guidelines set out in
the Code and it is responsible for, among other things, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

Details of the composition and the attendance of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping B4 A
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFEHITES

Mr. CHIU Wai Piu, Chairman

Ms. KWAN Sin Yee FERr L
Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin RE T E
Mr. SUN Zhi Jun REFELE

(appointed on 24 August 2015)
Ms. HUANG Yu Jun
(appointed on 24 August 2015)
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (continued)

The remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company for the period ended 31 December 2015 is within the
range of HK$0 to HK$1,000,000.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarized as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which
the Company considers will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company monitors the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and reviews it from time
to time and shall bring to the attention of the Board any significant
issues or recommendations as and when necessary and appropriate.
Any reviews, updates and amendments to the Board Diversity Policy
shall be approved by the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election
by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, one third of the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each annual general
meeting of the Company.

Potential new directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2015 and work performed included reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and the nomination of new
Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued) REZEES (&)
Details of the composition and the attendance of the Nomination IEEZEZEE&7HAKLEZE Y HEB RN
Committee are as follows: 8
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings held
during the tenure
of his/her office
in the year
HEREFER
ERIERET
BERY
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. WEI Yue Tong, Chairman BRAELRE FE 3/3
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping EP AR S A 3/3
Independent non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. CHIU Wai Piu EERLEE 2/3
Ms. KWAN Sin Yee BfE R L 3/3
Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin R T HE 2/3
Mr. SUN Zhi Jun REBLE 1/1
(appointed on 24 August 2015) (RZE—RFENAZTHHBEEZT)
Ms. HUANG Yu Jun BEEART 1/1

(appointed on 24 August 2015) (RZZE—RAFNAZTHBEZE)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set out
in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other
things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors reviewing
the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting, financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
corporate governance, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its
terms of reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee
held 4 meetings and work performed included reviewing the Group’s
quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, its internal control systems,
and corporate governance matters for inclusion in the Company’s
Annual Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Details of the composition and the attendance of the Audit BREES AKX L EZ 7 HEBRFMRN
Committee are as follows: ™
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings held
during the tenure
of his/her office
in the year
HEXE E£R
ERERNET
SERH
Non-executive Director EHITES
Mr. ZHENG Zhu Ping WA 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BAFEHITES
Mr. LEUNG Oh Man, Martin, Chairman REX ek TE O
Mr. CHIU Wai Piu ERZRE 8/4
Ms. KWAN Sin Yee MERZE 4/4
Mr. SUN Zhi Jun BEERE n
(appointed on 24 August 2015) (RZE—AFNAZTHBEEZE)
Ms. HUANG Yu Jun BEERL 1
(appointed on 24 August 2015) (RZZE—RAFNAZTHBEZE)
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION B EN &

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fee for the Company’'s HZE-_Z—RAF+_A=+—HIFE &

external auditors for audit services was about HK$724,000 (2014: A RISMNBZ AN 2 = E R B B4 /A724,000

HK$600,000) and for non-audit services mainly relating to taxation &7t ( ZZ—[IU4 : 600,000/87T) * TE@ R

matters was about HK$52,000 (2014: HK$101,000). MG EIE 2 I BBRT E A A4 /552,000
7T (ZZE—W4% 101,000 T) °
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2015, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going-
concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report attached
to the Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system with an
aim to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s
assets in compliance with the provisions of the Code. The purpose is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in achieving the Group’s business objectives.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group maintains an effective internal control system. It
consists, in part, of organisational arrangements with defined lines
of responsibility and delegation of authority, and comprehensive
systems and control procedures.

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control system in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2015 and considered the system
effective and adequate. The Board assessed the effectiveness of
internal control by considering the reviews performed by the Audit
Committee. The Company complies with the code provisions relating
to internal control contained in the Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The current company secretary is Ms. LEUNG Tsz Man, an executive
Director, who replaced Mr. ZHENG Jian Peng, an executive Director,
on 11 September 2015. She is also the authorised representative
and the financial controller of the Company. She undertook no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2015.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at www.
globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general meetings.
All shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings and
they may put to the Board any enquiries about the Group through
its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk or in writing sent
to the principal office of the Company at Suite 2105, 21st Floor,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The Directors, company secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management respond to enquiries
from shareholders promptly. The Chairman, the Chief Executive
Officer, chairmen of board committees (or their respective delegates)
and external auditors attend the annual general meeting and are
available to answer questions raised by shareholders. Shareholders
may also access the Company’s corporate website for the Group’s
information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year under review.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 99,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2015, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 &%}

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

RERBEREEARAFAIMEKRR
(REEHEZMALZHRLAE])

AZBETE TRBERHERNF44HEEFIR
RYEBEEEARAR ([ERF]) REKB
RE(GEAEEE]) Z2HRAMBHE 4R
EMBBREEER_E—AF+t=A=1+—
BZHGRaMBARE BE-T—RAF+ A
ZST-HLEFEZEEBEMEMEE RS
R EABRARGEEPRLGEERERBE
ARTESFBRRMEREMHARR -

EENGEUBRRAREZEE

BERRERARBEEEGHMAGRMZE
BUBREENREB ARG 2 WERE
RHEBBERAFZEAWBHRE LERKESE
RRVEZ AR URET S EBRGFK
HRMIBLRERERRAZERAMEHRE -

REBE 2 B

AZBMITZEERBREBERMZHEREEK
FERBEEMBZEGAMBRRERE
RoWEREEBRRBRE - FRULASN DK
Bb1T 2 & & A A EE AL A ik o AAXBUED
TR AREEZAT HEMEMNAL
BEIAERET - ARBBMTCERETES
SR AERMcEBRBERETER Z
FEANBRAZBENITETEERE LR
ENETER WABBELXSRAVBR
REB TS B EAERERBRM



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB EBARAT | ANNUAL REPORT 2015 £ 3§ 43 C

B ZHERE (F)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 February 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-_ZT—RAFT_-_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

1.1.2015 to 1.7.2014 to
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E-HF —ET-mEF
—HA—HB% tHR—HZE
S —ZT-mEF
+=-—A=+—H +=-—A=+—8”
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Revenue Wz 7 217,068 25,865
Cost of sales $HE A AR (216,775) (24,887)
Gross profit E M 293 978
Other income H At Y A 105 26
General and administrative expenses —#& R 1T X H (31,340) (4,559)
Marketing and promotion expenses M H#HE S H (2,581) (92)
Staff costs 1E B A (47,932) (6,924)
Loss before taxation Br i AT ES 18 (81,455) (10,571)
Taxation i I8 9 - =
Loss for the year/period RNEE BBz EiE 10 (81,455) (10,571)
Other comprehensive expense REE/HEZ
for the year/period HEh2HEZ N
Item that may be reclassified HE e EF D IER
subsequently to profit or 10ss: BmsHE -
Exchange difference arising on REINBEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations ERE=R (60) =
Total comprehensive expense KEE /HBZ KR A
for the year/period attributable BEABRGEZEZ T
to owners of the Company 1A g (81,515) (10,571)
(restated)
(&E7))

Loss per share — basic FREE-EXR 11 HK(2.07) centsi# i HK(0.33) centsi&{ll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZZE—RF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2015

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
Bt 5 F&T T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB Kk&E 12 12,054 1,926
Intangible assets mEE 13 10,220 =
Deposit paid for acquisitions WEENZES 14 35,001 1,520
57,275 3,446
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K H i BR K 15 1,617 2,283
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIAS 16 24,869 32,475
26,486 34,758
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables BRNE S RHEMER 17 3,244 1,063
Net current assets REEEFE 23,242 33,695
Net assets BEFE 80,517 37,141
Capital and reserves BB AR
Share capital &N 18 19,800 18,000
Reserves w15 60,717 19,141
Equity attributable to owners of ZN/NSIEZ RS N
the Company 80,517 37,141

The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 99 were S$44BEEFOEMH 2 GAMERREHL =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 ZT—XE- A+ hEdHEF ez LEET

February 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: B UWAHTIINEERRESE:
WEI YUE TONG ZHENG JIAN PENG
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
RAE HRGE

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_ZT—RAFT_-_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARER AR
Share Capital Share Translation Accumulated
capital reserve premium reserve losses Total
B& EARE REE RERE By &g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL Fi#n TR Tin T FiEn
AT July 2014 NoE-mELA-A 15,000 7,540 8461 . (27,389) 3612
Issue of ordinary shares BTLEkR 3,000 = 41,100 = = 44,100
Loss and total comprehensive expense THREBREALLAS
for the period . . - - (10,671) (10,571)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-RF+-A=1-A 18,000 7,540 49,561 - (37,960) 37,141
Exchange difference arising on BREBNEBELCERER
translation of foreign operation . = S (60) = (60)
Loss for the year FAER - - - - (81,455) (81,455)
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBRRZATLAE
for the year 4 . - (60) (81,455) (81,515)
Issue of ordinary shares BOLAR 1,800 - 125,640 - - 127,440
Expenses incurred in connection RETEBRELLHER
with issue of ordinary shares - - (2,549) - - (2,549)
At 31 December 2015 N-E-RE+-F=+-F 19,800 7,540 172,652 (60) (119,415 80,517

The capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal BAFEE —_ZETTFE=H ZEIEZHFEF
value of the share capital issued by the Company and the fair value £ A& RQ A BT AEE LN B QR D
allocated to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries at the date ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’éﬂﬁlﬁ%ﬁ5%?EEZA$ETEZ%§§ °
of acquisition arisen from a group reorganisation in March 2000.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-_ZT—RAFT_-_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

1.1.2015 1.7.2014
to to
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—ZE-8F —ZT—mE
—A—HBZ% 5E B =18l Z=
—B-1fF —TlF
+=A=+—8” F= B =ar—E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T T
Operating activities K TS
Loss before taxation B 4 A S 18 (81,455) (10,571)
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation of property, WE- -BELREZBZITE
plant and equipment 1,789 38
Amortisation of intangible assets M EEBE 300 -
Interest income FEMA (39) -
Operating cash flows before movements HEERRPN I LERERN
in working capital (79,405) (10,538)
Decrease (increase) in trade and JEWE 5 R H MR Z
other receivables B ($Ea0) 666 (426)
Increase (decrease) in trade and FENE 5 REAMBRERZ
other payables o OR ) 2,191 (42)
Net cash used in operating activities TSR ZIRE FE (76,548) (11,006)
Investing activities KEES
Deposit paid for acquisition of L UR BE — RE B /B A &)
a subsidiary BENE® (35,001) =
Acquisition of property, WEDE BE REE
plant and equipment (12,039) (1,959)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—RNB AR (8,948) -
Interest received B U B 39 =
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEEERE IR
a car license - (1,520)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBMAER S F58E (55,949) (3,479)
Financing activities BEED
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMH TS FUE 127,440 44,100
Share issue expenses EpEITHX (2,549) =
Net cash from financing activities BEREAEREFHE 124,891 44,100
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RekReFE 2 CRD)
cash equivalents 30 F R (7,606) 29,615
Cash and cash equivalents FOMVIZE SRR S
at the beginning of the year/period 32,475 2,860
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of F/HPBZRERBASEE
the year/period, represented BRBITEHERS
by bank balances and cash 24,869 32,475
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_ZT—RAFT_-_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). The
immediate holding company is Global Strategic (Holding) Group
Limited since 2 September 2014, which is a private limited
company established in Samoa. The directors of the Company
consider that the ultimate holding companies are Liang Tan
Yi Xing International Foundation Limited and Hotex Holdings
Limited since 2 September 2014, which are private limited
companies established in Hong Kong. Prior to 2 September
2014, the immediate and ultimate holding company was
Champion Technology Holdings Limited, a company with
its shares listed on the Main Board of the Exchange. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 26.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_T—AHAF+-_A=+—BILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the period ended 31 December 2014, the financial
year end date of the Group was changed from 30 June to 31
December because the Directors of the Company determined
to bring the financial year end date of the Group in line with
that of the ultimate holding companies. The consolidated
financial statements for the current year cover the twelve
month period ended 31 December 2015. The corresponding
comparative amounts shown for the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash
flows and related notes cover the six month period ended 31
December 2014 and therefore may not be comparable with
amounts shown for the current year.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 19  Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010 —2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011 -2013 cycle

The application of these amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current reporting
period and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—RAFT_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial instruments’

Regulatory deferral accounts?

Revenue from contracts with
customers'’

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®

Disclosure initiative®

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Equity method in separate
financial statements®

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation and exception®

Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2012 — 2014 cycle®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BHE-_Z—RAFT_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

3.

A R BB
HEA([BERVBREE
Al) (&)

C 8 {8 s RAE R 2 # 7] KGRI BB
BB EER (&)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January i RZZE-NF-A—B=®UERBZ
2018, with earlier application permitted. FREBRAER AT REER-
2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning 2 RZZE-—ARF-A—B=xUERBZ
on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted. B FEB BB wE M B RE
R JLELF?A‘EEEEEFH 3
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 8 RZZE-—ARF-—A—HB=xUERBZ
2016, with earlier application permitted. FREBRAER AT REER-

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments
to the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—RAFT_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

FEA#H REIEITE B
HEA([ERVBREE
Bl) (#)

ERVBHEEEAFR ST A
(%)

BBV BREEFIRNETERTH
o T

e EEABEMEAFEIR (AT
H - EAMGHEISBEAZHAEE
RV HEELRIRBHKARIA
FEFE-FHRENREESD
RenB8XBRAARNMTE &
BHREREEREERES RHEAR
EEASCHENEZERERE  —
MPRERSHHRAEE QiR EH
KA E -REHNBRKEEESD
RehhEMBEENEBEAR
P AMER I ARGMBEE
BHRBERTRBERRELNR
ERARINAERAEERS
A BHEBIE RAFEA
H2mEmKENEtE B EME
ARERBAREGNERRE
HEEE R RAFETE - st
REEFEBMBREENFR B
BAR T EREEMD
R 2INBEREZAFE
BEES (KIEEEREKRIN) -
WRAEESFERREBRA -



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED REEHEBER A A | ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F R 53 C

e B mKRME ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BE-_T—AHAF+-_A=+—BILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

A R BB
HEA([BERVBREE
Al) (&)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

ERUMBBRERENFOREMITA ]

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—RAFT_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ERAHMIRKETEBYE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA([BBMBEHREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) All) (&)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued) EBMEREENFER e T A

(#%&)

e  The new general hedge accounting requirements retain e RN EHEERTRE
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater ZHEEREET S B RS EHR
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions EITREENR HEASAE XK
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the AN BRRERGAEFPIA
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments WMTABENRGEHERSEER
and the types of risk components of non-financial items B IE BT 518 B B R R 48 B EB 19
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the A AN MEARE i<<<%’é$(ﬁﬂ“
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with 2R R LA T8 7 B AR | R B ER AR o 4
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective RN TE BRI B
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer Ml ANEHRERRRERESTHN
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about SR IR HTE ©
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing AARESEETHEARSYBRS

the impact on the application of HKFRS 9. AERNEIR 2 2 -

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” ERAMKBREEANEISR [ RBEEFE

#Z W2 |

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single RZZE—MFLA & %ﬁﬁ“#&%ﬁt— 1]

comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for 155)“5%5%15%47—1 —HERE

revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will A PARERR ?K BEEFPEHHKA-E

supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including BB B3R EERIE155 £ - 5

HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and RIBE A AR AERIES| &?‘Eﬁ}%

the related Interpretations when it becomes effective. SEAERE185 (WAl - AT AR

F1R[ZEAH] LA E‘ﬁﬂ’\]aﬁﬁ g



GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB EBARAT | ANNUAL REPORT 2015 £ 3§ 55 C

e R mRME (8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-Z—RAF+T-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled

3.

ERHIIREEBTIEBME
HER (BB BREE
Al) (&)

ERVBBREENFISR[RETFE
HzWasl (&)

BB R E LR FE165RA RO RENTY
—(EAEREEIABANRERNTPEE
AHREmARBOARE URREERE
HRXMZEE MR MESHRE-

in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the ek A2 AT EEEKRER
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition: A

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer e FIH BFHE—\IEFPHNELN

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract o F2H HMEAANMBAHERS

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

s HIY EBEXHER

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance o FUAFX BRHERIEEEHA
obligations in the contract SO ERSE:F

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies o FoH EERPAEABAERLRE
a performance obligation RUA

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) BIEEASMBREELNFE15% & — @

a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by

HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company are in the process of reviewing
the effect of the application of HKFRS 15 on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s Financial
Information.

Except for the above disclosed, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the new and revised standards
will have no material impact on the results and the combined
financial position of the Group.

ERNABOEBEERRA NER
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual
accounts have been amended with reference to the new CO
and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2015
have been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be disclosed
under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the
new CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical costs is generally based on

the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s amounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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HE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business and net of discounts.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the provision of services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings 5%
20% — 33"/5%
20% - 33"/5%
Leasehold improvements 20%

Computer system and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles 20%
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BHE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are recognised
at cost at the acquisition date. After initial recognition,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The accounting policies are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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BHE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired
individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments and an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T—FHF+-_HA=1+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

HE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses were recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-Z—RAF+T-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognised a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire
or, when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognised a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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HE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year/period. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before taxation’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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BHE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—RAFT_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually and whenever there is an
indication they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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BHE—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a bi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt.
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HE-_Z—RAFT_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ERMITA
Categories of financial instruments SR EER
2015 2014
—ZEF—-1 —F=—n
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FAT
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including B e WRIE
bank balances and cash) (BREROTEHRRRS) 59,951 34,484
Financial liabilities TREBE
Amortised cost [RE: ] RN 3,244 1,063

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, deposit paid for
acquisitions and trade and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s exposure
to interest rate risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-Z—RAF+T-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
receivables, the management will only advance credit
to customers with good credit history. In addition, the
management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
of future discounted cash flows, to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Credit risk is concentrated to a small number of debtors.
However, the management considers, based on the good
credit history and the long term business relationship with the
debtor, there is no significant credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is minimal as such amounts are
placed in banks with good reputation in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
T—FF+-_HA=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

BHE—

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate which will affect the Group’s financial
results and its cash flows. Certain trade receivables and bank
balances of the Group are denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group does not engage in any foreign currency hedging
activities. However, the management monitors the related
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets which expose the Group to

foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
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denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting HRZEBEDT
period are as follows:
Assets
BE

2015 2014
—_=E—F —=EF—m
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR (TAR®]) 759 -
United States dollar (‘US$”) Er(lZEx]) 147 24,982
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) PR (DRPI%]) 24 30

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk in RMB, US$ and MOP. Under the pegged exchange rate
system, the financial exposure on exchange rate fluctuation
between HK$ and US$, and between HK$ and MOP are
considered insignificant by the directors. The directors of the
Company consider the Group’s exposure to currency risk is
not significant and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

No sensitivity analysis on the HK$ against RMB is prepared
as the directors of the Company consider the impact of such
foreign currency risk is insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
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to pay.

Carrying
Total amount at
undiscounted 31 December
On demand 1 - 3 months cash flows 2015
R-Z-1%
ARBEEE +-A=t-H
BEA 1238 A T ZIREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TER TERT

At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1%

+=A=+-H

Trade and other payables B & 5 R E R 3K - 3,244 3,244 3,244
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead) 6. TEIT R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BHERBEBEEERBEK (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBELERE (&)
Carrying
Total amount at
undiscounted 31 December
On demand 1 - 3 months cash flows 2014
RZE—F
RUBEE +ZA=1+—H
B 1Z31E A B ZERHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT FHET FAT
At 31 December 2014 ~ RZZ—4F
F2H ==
Other payables JE A~ HL A 0B - 1,063 1,083 1,063
Fair value AFEHE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are cREEREREBEZAFEBEIRERR
o

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing RASRIZARTEEEAET -

models based on discounted cash flows.

EERRREBERARGAE M B ®RKRT
ReemEESRAGREELEAERD
FEERE-

The directors consider the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

HRAS B ER VIR R ESRE Y
BHREBRAFEEFEZERTA &
Y RENAFEEFEZDM -

No analysis of fair value measurements is presented as the
Group does not have financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements.

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WERDEER
Revenue Ui &=

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold in respect of its commodity trading business
and services rendered in establishing and providing secure
electronic payment processing platform.

WA mEBESEHFTEEREMAR
R REHREZE2EFNFEFFEER
HRGFzE B R EEEHE-
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S

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

The revenue of the Group comprises the following:

—E-—RAF+-A=1+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

WERDEERE (&)
W ()

AEEZWEBIET I &R

1.1.2015 to 1.7.2014 to
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—ZE-8F —ZT—mE
—A—B% < 5 =8l =
—ZE-8F —ZT—mE
+=—BA=+—H T=A ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Commodity trading EmES 216,802 24,898
IT solution services BB B R T =R 266 967
217,068 25,865
Segment information STEER

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of
internal management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies conforming to HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company, for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. Specifically, the Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are
identified as follows:

° Commodity trading — includes income from trading of
copper

° IT solution services - including services rendered in
establishing and providing secure electronic payment
processing platform

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Segment results represent the loss before taxation earned by
each segment, excluding unallocated income and expenses
such as central administration costs and directors’ salaries.
This is the measure reported to the executive directors of
the Company, the chief operating decision maker, for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

Information regarding the above segments is reported below:

7. WERDEERE (&)

DEER (&)

BEHRLESBEERZ®RNOT

Commodity IT solution
trading services Consolidated
BRI
BmES MRFER® &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
For the year ended HE-_Z—1F
31 December 2015 TZA=+—RHIEFE
REVENUE Wz
External and total revenue HINEE KB WS 216,802 266 217,068
RESULTS ¥4&
Segment result DEEE 9) (2,229) (2,238)
Unallocated expenses, net Ao HAT FEE (79,217)
Loss before taxation G800 R (81,455)
For the period from —E—MEELA—R=E
1 July 2014 to —ET-WF+=A
31 December 2014 =+—HHME
REVENUE Wz
External and total revenue HINEE KB WS 24,898 967 25,865
RESULTS E5
Segment result DEEE (19) (488) (507)
Unallocated expenses, net ROBLH S FEH (10,064)
Loss before taxation G800 R (10,571)
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BHE-_FT—HAF+-_A=+—BILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. Wk EER &)

(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) PEER (&)
Commodity IT solution
trading services Unallocated Consolidated
BN
BEmES MRARRE RO B Ch
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET FHET FHET
For the year from 31 HE-_ZT—H#F
December 2015 +=-A=+—H
IEFE
Amounts included MAFTEDEERZ

in the measure of BEE

segment profit or

loss:

Depreciation e - - 1,789 1,789

Amortisation 5y - 300 - 300
For the period from —E-MWFELA—HZE

1 July 2014 to —E-mE+ZA

31 December 2014 =+—HHM
Amounts included in  MAGTEDEERZ

the measure of TE:

segment profit or

loss:

Depreciation e - 8 30 &ig)
No assets and liabilities are included in segment reporting as EEEA$/‘_7$R/_%$$%E}E§F&%1§
they are not regularly reviewed by the executive directors of the EITEMERRE  BURBBEMA D ER
Company. HER o
Geographical information i & & B
All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by location REFPHRESIZEEMTE D 2K
of customers or by location of assets are within the People’s EBFAREMIERBEEH MNP E
Republic of China (the “PRC”), including Hong Kong and AREME([FEH]) BEEERR

Macau. F9o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BHE-_Z—RAFT_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

During the year, included in staff costs of HK$47,932,000
(1.7.2014 to 31.12.2014: HK$6,924,000) are emoluments paid
to directors of the Company, details of which are set out below:

Directors’ emoluments

Year ended 31 December 2015

Name of executive directors (Note f) NTESHA (M)
Wei Yue Tong RAE
Weng Lin Lei SRE
Fan Wei Guo SBEE
Zheng Jian Peng il
Leung Tsz Man (Note b) 2% (o)

Name of non-executive director (Note g) FRITESHL (MiEg)
Zheng Zhu Ping BRF

Name of independent non-executive directors B FETEEM A (Kizh)

(Note h)

Chiu Wai Piu £EE

Leung Oh Man, Martin 2

Kwan Sin Yee BER

Sun Zhi Jun (Note b) BEE (Miib)

Huang Yu Jun (Note b) EXE (Mb)

Ex THASREEMS

FR 8 IKA47,932,0008 T (=F
—OFELtA-—BE_Z-—WOF+_H
=+—H:6,924,000 ) BEE MK
REEEME FHEIANTX:

EEMS

BE-_Z—hF+-A=1+—HLEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
HE-_Z—RAFT_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8. EE -THHERKREEM2
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) ()
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEMS (&)
Period from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014 TN+ A—HBAE_ZET—NF+=
A=+—HHM
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
e FeREMEN ARFEERRE RKBERFEER ESMeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT ThET TAT
(Note a)
(MisFa)
Name of executive directors (Note f) HITESRHA (MEf)
Wei Yue Tong (Note c) HAE (MiEc) - 600 1,000 = 1,600
Weng Lin Lei (Note c) $2% (Mic) - 200 500 - 700
Fan Wei Guo (Note d) BEE (KEd) - 225 500 = 725
Zheng Jian Peng (Note d) e (Md) - 375 500 5 880
Paul Kan Man Lok (Note e) B3 % (iste) - 35 - - 35
Shirley Ha Suk Ling (Note ¢) ER% (Kite) - 257 123 5 385
Name of non-executive director (Note g) FHTESHL (HiEg)
Zheng Zhu Ping (Note ¢) BRTE (MiEc) 100 100 500 3 703
Name of independent non-executive directors B FEHTEE M4 (Histh)
(Note h)
Chiu Wai Piu (Note c) B2 (Kiske) 20 = = - 20
Leung Oh Man, Martin (Note c) %T’U( (Bsc) 20 - - - 20
Kwan Sin Yee (Note c) 5 (HizEc) 20 = L = 20
Leo Kan Kin Leung (Note e) F‘iiﬁ( Kitzte) 3 5 - = 8
Lai Yat Kwong (Note e) BAK (Kite) 3 5 - = 8
Shao Xiang Ming (Note e) M (Mite) 9 14 - - 23
Alec Ho Yat Wan (Note ¢) WRE (Kite) 9 14 = - 23
Kong Siu Chee (Note &) TA% (Kiite) 9 14 - - 23
193 1,844 & 128 13 58173
Notes: Ff 5
(a) The performance related incentive payments are discretionary () BRIERRBRZBSHESSHIE

and decided by the board of directors.

EE-

(b)  Ms. Leung Tsz Man, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun and Ms. Huang Yu Jun were b) BFIXL BEBEXERFTERELZL
appointed on 24 August 2015. RZE-—REN\AZTHBREEZE-

(¢)  Mr. Wei Yue Tong, Mr. Weng Lin Lei, Mr. Zheng Zhu Ping, Mr. ) BAEZELEE BEZLE - BMFERX
Chiu Wai Piu, Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin and Ms. Kwan Sin Yee HOREREALE REXAEARBER
were appointed on 16 October 2014. ZERZZFE—WNF+A+AEZE-

(d)  Mr. Fan Wei Guo and Mr. Zheng Jian Peng were appointed on 3 (d) BEBEEEREBEBEER=_F—
October 2014, F+A=-BHEZT-

(e)  Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok, Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling, Mr. Leo Kan () MBXEHE ERKRLLT BEBERZ%

Kin Leung, Mr. Lai Yat Kwong, Ms. Shao Xiang Ming, Mr. Alec Ho
Yat Wan and Mr. Kong Siu Chee were resigned on 16 October
2014.

& RA XL BARLL [ARE
EHERTIEEEER-_E—NE+ A
TNBEE
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HE-_Z—RAFT_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8. EEX THHEIKEEM=

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (4&)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) BEEME (Z)

Notes: (Continued) MisE: (&)

()  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly H NEFERTEEZHEIETEHY
for their services in connection with the management of the BEHARAAEAEEETEEHIRME
affairs of the Company and the Group. 2 BR7 o

(@ The non-executive director’s emoluments shown above were (@ MNEFESERITESZHEIEEH
mainly for the services as director of the Company and its HESERAARREWNBARES
subsidiaries. 2 BR7 o

(h)  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown (hy MNEFESBIIERTEEZFHEHE
above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company. BHHEEEARRARES Z R -

Five highest paid individuals AEEEHFAL

The five highest paid individuals includes five directors hEEem ATEREREES(ZF

(1.7.2014 to 31.12.2014: four directors and Ms. Shirley Ha Suk —MEt+tA—RBREZT—NWFE+=A

Ling) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented =t—H MHEBEEEFRERKRLLT) A

above. The total emoluments paid to Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling MeE A MEIR EX -BE_ZF—Y

as the capacity of an employee during the six month period Ft+ZA=T—HIEANEABHEARE
ended 31 December 2014 were as follows: MEZLTZEEGHMEESZ S 2BE

BEFEBET:

1.1.2015 1.7.2014

to to

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

—2-1% —TnmF

—A—HZ& tHA—H=E

—E-HF —E-UF

+=A=+—8” +=-A=+—8”

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&T FET

Salaries and other benefits e MHMEF - 313
Retirement benefits scheme RIKAE FET B 3

contributions = 4

- 317
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BE-_T—AHAF+-_A=+—BILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

8. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 8. EE THHARKEEMS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued) EEEEHAL(£E)

Number of employees

EBEAH™
1.1.2015 1.7.2014
to to
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E-hF —E-MF
—H—BZ& =H=H=
—E-8F —E—OF

t-BA=t-H +-f=+-~

The emoluments were within the EBEZHNE N T T &EE :
following band:

Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ —1,000,0007 7T - 1
During the year and the six month period ended 31 December RAFERBE-ZZ-—WNF+=A
2014, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the =t+—HLERER AEEMERARQ
directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals AESIASRa T ATIIME £
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AINAZR S B o A 2N & B 2 R B =X
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors have BHmE - RAFERBE_ZT—MOF
waived any emoluments during the year and the six month FTZA=+—RHLEAER EFHEN

period ended 31 December 2014. ZEEMME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
E—RFEF+-_F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE—

TAXATION 9.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Company and its
subsidiaries have no assessable profits in the current year or
the six month period ended 31 December 2014.

The taxation for the year/period can be reconciled to the loss
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

BiE

BARAR A REN B R RN AFE S E
EZZ—NMFE+ZRA=+—HIEA
WEA R R - E U 4RE M mR
EUER AR BB STRE-

AEE/HPRZHEARFENEAERR
Htt 2 mias R 2 BIEEKRMT

comprehensive income as follows:

1.1.2015 to 1.7.2014 to
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E—FE —F
—HA—HBZ% tRA—HZE
—E—fEF —
+=A=+—H +=—ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Loss before taxation 00 R (81,455) (10,571)
Tax credit at Hong Kong Profits BEEBFSHE16.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (ZT— ¥ :16.5%)
ARECHRIEE R (13,440) (1,744)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ FEFHIERM P H 2
for tax purposes B 2,508 177
Tax effect of income not taxable RRMPAZB BT E
for tax purposes (13) (24)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ARERRIBHIBZHGETE 11,648 1,591
Effect of different tax rates of REMENERERLE
subsidiaries operating MEBRARZTRBE 2
in other jurisdictions A (210) =
Others HAh (493) -
Taxation for the year/period RNEE /HBZHIE - S
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10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD 10. ZFE HEESR
1.1.2015 to 1.7.2014 to
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E-HEF —ET—JOF
—HA—HBZ% =B =
—E-EF —E-F
+=—A=+—H T=E = 1E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FE T

Loss for the year/period has been REE HEBIEE R :

arrived at after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration % 25 6 B < 724 600
Depreciation of property, WME- -BERZBLINE

plant and equipment 1,789 33
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHHE 300 =
Operating lease rentals in respect of MEEMEIKEHEETH

rented premises 4,344 219
Research expenditures, including MRAX  BIEEEKA

staff costs of HK$436,000 436,000/% 7T

(1.7.2014 to 31.12.2014: —“T-UFE+HA—BZE

HK$610,000) —E-mE+ZA

=+—H:610,000/%& 7T) 459 625

and after crediting: MBEFA:

Interest income SN 39 —
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11. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

11. BREE

RRABHREANEBEERERNEBEDRE
AT 8BS

1.1.2015 to 1.7.2014 to
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E-5F —E-MF
—A—HZ& tHA—H=E
—E-HF —E-UF
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—8”
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FHET
Loss for the year/period attributable M EBRELREEZ
to owners of the Company for the KRNrER AEML
purpose of basic loss per share AEE HEEE (81,455) (10,571)
’000 000
T F %
(restated)
(&E5))
Weighted average number of A ETRERNEEZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of L5 A N RE B
basic loss per share 3,930,411 3,157,377

The weighted average number of shares for the purpose
of calculating basic loss per share for the six month period
ended 31 December 2014 has been retrospectively adjusted in
connection to the one-for-twenty subdivision of shares which
became effective in January 2015.

No diluted loss per share is presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue throughout the year/period.

BEAEHE—_T—NF+=—A=+—H

LE7NE A e IR E A E B 2 kT Rk

%(EE‘J’HXT’”\?FF (—BRFHEBE=TI) R
E-RAF—RERIERBHFAE-

BEZ2EREIEE AREAFE/
HEYSEED BHTERMK
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ¥ - BERKE

Computer Furniture
Land and system and and Leasehold Motor
buildings equipment fixtures  improvements vehicles Total
THREF ERZRARRE GRREE RE#EE A8 @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAR TAR TAT
COST A
At 1 July 2014 RZZ-RmELA-A = 762 8 E - 770
Additions RE - 325 107 720 807 1,959
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mE+-A=1+-A . 1,087 115 720 807 2,729
Additions "E 3,302 328 190 1,999 6,220 12,039
Disposals HE = (762) ®) - = (770)
Exchange adjustment BEHAE (79) = - (44) - (123)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-2%+-A=t+-AH 3,203 653 297 2,675 7,027 13,875
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 July 2014 RZZE-ME+A-A = 762 8 = - 770
Provided for the period BREE s 6 2 12 13 33
At 31 December 2014 RZE-mE+-A=1+-A = 768 10 12 13 803
Provided for the year FNAE 68 113 35 a7 12302 1,789
Eliminated on disposals HER = (762) ®) 3 L (770)
Exchange adjustment EXEE (1) - L - £ ()
At 31 December 2015 R-Z2-2%+-A=1+-A 67 19 37 283 1,315 1,821
GARRYING VALUES BAEE
At 31 December 2015 R-B-EE+-A=1+-H 3,156 534 260 2,392 5,712 12,084
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-mE+-A=1+—-A = 319 105 708 794 1926
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BHE

13.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

—E—FRAF+-A=1+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

3. ELEE

Cost of
mobile
Car license application Total
RENER
Hg BRARE& et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET
COST W$
At 1 January 2015 —E—RF—HA—H - - -
On acquisition of a subsidiary H&ZE% [NPE=R/NEG] - 9,000 9,000
Transfer B 1,520 = 1,520
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—HF
+=-—HA=+—H 1,520 9,000 10,520
AMORTISATION 5y
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—H—H - - -
Charge for the year F AR - 300 300
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HF
P= I ER—1E] = 300 300
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—1F
+ = A =EH 1,620 8,700 10,220
At 31 December 2014 P E— O F
+—-A=+—H = = =

The amount of car license was transferred from deposit paid
for acquisitions during the year. The directors are of the
opinion that the car license has an indefinite useful life as
the car license is subjected to annual renewal and hence no
amortisation is provided. At the end of the reporting period, the
car license is measured using cost model.

The cost of mobile application represents the web-based and
mobile application platform for designing and sales of garments
as acquired in November 2015. The cost of mobile application
has finite useful life and is amortised on a straight-line basis
over 5 years.

FR-BERZEEARCHRBERZESE
EEZRn ERNEREBFER

HuEAERAER it E5T 2%

HoMBEHR ERTIEAKAER

5HE -

RBEREAKNARER T —0F
—i——ﬂFﬁH&ZE\%ZHE%?&J&%’EiAZ
Mgk EAENZAA - REER
RARAEEERAEAFHALIAER
ERAFHE -
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BHE—

14.

15.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITIONS

On 23 April 2015, the Company entered into the Equity
Transfer Agreement with Mr. Xiong Songgan, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of Yichang Zhongyou Natural Gas
Utilisation Co., Ltd. (the “Target”), and independent third party
in relation to the major acquisition of 49% of the equity interest
in the Target at the consideration of HK$100,000,000. Upon
completion, the Target will be regarded as being controlled
by the Group in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies and the Target will become a 49% indirectly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The business scope of the Target
includes investment in natural gas project, provision of natural
gas technology consultation services and sales of natural gas
cooking appliance and accessories. As at 31 December 2015,
the deposit was paid as the first instalment of this acquisition
of amount HK$35,001,000. The deposit is refundable if certain
conditions as stated in the Equity Transfer Agreement have not
been fulfilled, including the acquisition of natural gas operation
permit. The directors consider the deposit as non-current asset
as the acquisition of a subsidiary is a long term investment.

As at 31 December 2014, the deposit was paid to acquire a
license for Guangzhou/Hong Kong cross-boundary private car.
During the year, the acquisition was completed and the amount
was transferred to intangible assets.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

14. EFNERE

NR-ZE—AEMA-+=R A aFH
HETBRARFAERAR ([BEA
All) 2 AR IR R AR R S S E RSB
BE=FH BB IZR R Z49% M #EET LA
T FE R L& A100,000,000 7T °
RETERE REAEEZ SR -
BERARBERASEEZ S5 BUR K
ﬁ¢m$%@¢%JﬁEF“Thﬁ%
ANQRIEEEEI9%E SN B A
BEA 72%%@%a%&§i%ﬁﬁ
B RERARARMEARBGARBEE
AAREBRBAREGH - RZT—hHF
+ZA=+—RH AWBE=EMZFZ
% — 1% & A35,001,00078 7t © fif A% 1
R o s THRE(REREX
ARSI B ) TREER  Re il T
WREB-ZEERAE ARKENB AR
AERBRE BIESRIERBEE-

R-F-—WFE+-_A=1+—8 Z&E

TitBA—REMNBFEBRLREL
IR - FA WEEELE K
R eBEEBREREE-

15. BWE 5 K H fth ik K

2015 2014

— —E-mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T FHET

Trade receivables FEWKE FEER 11 1,502
Other receivables JE U H i BR 3R 1,606 781

1,617 2,283
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HE—

15.

16.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continves) 15. BEWR B 5 R H At BR 7k (#)
The Group allows credit period ranging from 30 days to 180 TEERBHEMMEEBESTRZ
days for its trade customers of IT business depending on their BEEEE RHEEERTEBAMA T
credit worthiness, nature of services and conditions of the N FI0HEIBQORZEEH -BERE
market. For the commodities trading business, deposits are SEBME BEATERERS ®E
usually required and the remaining balance is usually receivable BEREPIEATE X &L TAREK
approximately within 10 days after the customers have received HermEHTARBEREZAE (M
all documents. The aging analysis of trade receivables based W tER A ERE) < EKE 5 RFER
on the invoice date which approximate the revenue recognition BT :
date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2015 2014
—E—FE —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
0 - 60 days 0-60H 11 1,502
Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance ET%%WETEJ%&%:JE A AEE Hﬁ&&fﬁ'
and sales management team would assess the potential EEEBEReTHBERPZEEE
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. = ﬁf%ig\ﬁ ZIEEB-BP2EE
Limits attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with HeLZRTEECEmERE TT =
reference to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and Bo RSB RIEEEREKR
sales management team considers trade receivables that are HRBERFERIER WA E RS H K
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as RABREZERESEFHARTEER
continuous repayments have been received. 8% o
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 16. BITHEBREE S

The bank balances carried prevailing market interest at an
average rate of 0.26% (2014: 0.026%) per annum.

RITEBRIZRITMBEENE 2 YR R
0.26[8 (—ZT— P04 :0.026/2 )t & -
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17. ERESZREMERER

2015 2014

= —F-IF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Trade payables EE SR 77 =
Other payables and accruals ERNEMERREGTER 3,167 1,063
3,244 1,063

HEFE TARENEERN FI0E60
BeTIARBERRRBEZZAHZ
S0 AN B SRR R D AT

The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group ranged
from 30 to 60 days. The following is an aged analysis of trade
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

2015 2014
—B-FHF —E—E

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH T

1 to 30 days 1-30H 77 -
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18. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares

18. A

Share capital

[igrix ! S
2015 2014 2015 2014
“Z-1F —mE “E-1f —E-mE
’000 '000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR Tk TAR FTAEL
Authorised: iy
16,000,000,000 (2014: 16,000,000,0004%
800,000,000) ordinary (22— RmE:
shares of HK$0.005 800,000,000/ )
(2014: HK$0.10) each BREE0.005%8 T
(ZZ-WmF:0.10
BL) 2 LBk 16,000,000 800,000 80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At beginning of year REA 180,000 150,000 18,000 15,000
Share subdivision f 75 4
(Note a) (M=E@)) 3,420,000 S - S
Issue of ordinary shares BERKR
(Note b) (PitaEb) 360,000 30,000 1,800 3,000
At end of year/period W/ EXR 3,960,000 180,000 19,800 18,000
Notes: B 5T
(@) Pursuant to a resolution passed at an extra ordinary general (@ WBRERARAEZZT—AF—HANA

meeting of the Company held on 9 January 2015, the ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.1 each were subdivided into 20
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each.

During the year, an aggregate of 360,000,000 (2014:
30,000,000) ordinary shares of the Company, have been placed
to independent third parties at the price of HK$0.354 (2014:
HK$1.50) per share. The shares issued rank pari passu in all
respects among themselves and with the existing issued shares.
The directors intend to use the net proceeds to fund a possible
acquisition of natural gas projects in the PRC, the Group’s
commodity trading business, and the remaining amount as
general working capital.

BIOTZBRRERAS LBBZRESR
RRAB 0BT 2 BB R20
A% & %0.0057% 7T 2 & & ik

b) FR AKAA D,\seoooooooﬁx(—
= — 04 : 30,000,0000% ) 38 i% 2 &F
ETBILE=F B ABERR0.354%8
TT(ZZF—F 1508 7T) - #1THK
HrZEMRREGERTRORSHE
ZHERSHMN - EERBATERIEFE
AR EREBTEZXARIAEL A%
EraRBIELE RHBBERE-—RE
BE®-
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19.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to
attract and to retain quality personnel and other persons and to
provide them with incentive to contribute to the business and
operation of the Group. Under the Scheme, the directors may
grant options to any eligible persons of the Group, including
() any director, employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (i)
a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (iv)
any person or entity whose service to the Group or business
with the Group contribute or is expected to contribute to the
business or operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Options granted are exercisable for a period of up to
ten years from the date of grant of the option as decided by the
board.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Scheme is equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of share; (ii) the closing price per share as
stated in the Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
grant of the option, which must be a business day and (iii) the
average closing price per share as stated in the Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which the options may be granted under the
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. However,
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period from time to time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No
option under the Scheme has been granted by the Company
since its adoption.

19. R EFTE

RZE—ZF+—A=+H AQAEK
M—IEERESE ([5H8]) 5T 8l 2
ERTERRARBEEFABREMA
TOENSERERANEE EBHRE
BEEHER REFTE EFRAE
B2EMEEBATELBRE EF
BEOAAF KB AR SEE ALK
FAESE - - BEXERM: k(iyEAra K
BARSKHMBALINEMNES EEK
BERRE2EXEEHRNEMNEERST:
S (INARAR - HEBA RSB A THE
MEE EESBERNEREANAT
ﬁm%%$%%%w%ﬁﬁﬁﬁlk1
ZRBHEBEREBET IR S E L,
g EAREE 2 B EEB AR
EAATHER EFRERBRAAAZ
R -FIBEE 2 BREATNRESTSHE
EZHE (HERERLAHRTRS
) RITE -

BRI A 2 BAAETTE(E (AR %A
%ﬂ%%%%%ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ'@%%
REFRLDBAS (WAREXR)ER
%iﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁZ&k%mF&w%
EROBREAMNAEZEXEERS
P B MERAB 2 BRRN FHKT
B U=FBZRSERE -REE
B2 BREMS R BRHEB ERA
BHEBARDRRFTEER B2 B #IT
BRAN10% » R - BT A RITER
Pergm Al FEIT 2 B BB ERAINE
HBHARRARDETRAZ30% £
REARBRREAIAET  REM[I2
&8 A BAFE A A ] B — Ao AR HH BB AR
RIS R ZBNHBE MREBARAR
Z12@ AEARE - B TREHTR
MER Z21% ° AR F B R8I LARIL
AR 8 B A -
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19.

20.

21.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 31 December 2015, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Scheme adopted by
the Company on 30 November 2012 is 300,000,000 shares
of HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the Company,
representing approximately 7.58% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Unless otherwise determined by the directors
of the Company, there is no minimum period required under the
Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be exercised.
There is no consideration for the application or acceptance
of an option under the Scheme. The remaining life of the
Scheme is approximately seven years and to be expired on 30
November 2022.

UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$104,508,000 (31 December
2014: HK$35,115,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

19.

20.

—E-—RFFT_A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

BREE (o)
R-ZE-AF+-A=+—A REX

RARZT—ZF+—A=THEHZ
ZA BN FRITZARRAROEEA
R &) f% AR # 300,000,000/% & #0.005
EILZBRD AR RBEBITRAY
7.58% BRIEARNRIEE RBITEIBASN -
ZATE W ER T RN AT E AT AR
B2 EEHME RIEBEZTE BB ERN
BREDERE ZS 2B THHEY
BT BR_BE-_—F+—A=+H
I_l/%°

RERIELER B

RS BTTAR NEERESAH BB
518 41 4104,508,000/ 7T (=& — Y
F+—-HA=+—H:35,115,000/87T)
A] K 85 R 208 I o B 7 T B TR R R 2R
ZHmFBER  RAEERRELEHEE
E-WEHEEBAERALE-

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT 21. KREHERE
The Group as lessee TEBEARAEEA

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during F/HPARBELEHEENREREN

the year/period: EE

1.1.2015 1.7.2014

to to

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

—E-HfF — Py

—HA—HBZ% tRA—H=ZE

—E-HF —ET-mF

+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#E T FHET

Premises LES 4,344 219
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21. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT (Continve) 21. &EHE&KIE (&)

The Group as lessee (Continued) TEBERRBA(£)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RS HTAR  BRIBE T EEEEE
for future minimum lease payments in rented premises under E AEEHEMELARARKERERN
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: SAEEREA T
2015 2014
—E-EF —F-OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Within one year 16 R 4,580 2,022
In the second to fifth year inclusive F2EESFN
(BEEREMF) 6,942 2,253
11,522 4,275
22. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 22. EXREIE
2015 2014
—ZE-AF —ZE-MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Capital expenditure in respect of the BEYE BELRREBEEZR
acquisition of property, plant and GRBmAEzZEEEE
equipment, development of systems RETHEARRX
and networks authorised but not

contracted for 500 500
During the year, the Group entered into an agreement FR-AEBFTUHBZARBERE A
to acquire a subsidiary for a total consideration of A 8K /100,000,000% 7T ° A
HK$100,000,000. As at 31 December 2015, a deposit of —E—RF+-_A=+—8'BXH
HK$35,001,000 have been paid. Details of the acquisition is 35,001,000 L 212 & - WIE EIHF 15

disclosed in note 14. RMFFE143% 55 -
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23. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

(b)

Transactions with a related party

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had entered into the following
transactions with a related party:

23. HEFIKE
(a) HEEFRS

Brér e ISR E A D AT ER -
AEEEBETITLNATR S

1.1.2015 1.7.2014
to to
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
—E-HF —E—OF
—R—HZ tHA—RA=%
Name of related party Nature of transaction —E-EF —E—-mF
BESER XEME +=A=+-HB +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TETT
Shenzhen New Front Cultural Advertising expenses
Communications Limited
ERYIIF B AR AL EHEF R A A BERxX 874 -

Shenzhen New Front Cultural Communications Limited
is a related company controlled by Mr. Wei Yue Tong, a
director of the Company.

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company and the five highest paid
individuals are identified as key management members of
the Group, their compensation during the year is set out
in note 8.

FRINFBRXCBEERDAR
ARREERAEREMERZ
FRERA -

(b) FTEEBABZHE
ARREERAERRSHFA LR

BRAEBEZTEZEEBKE  ®
FRFRZMEFHNMIES
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24.

25.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Employees employed by the Group’s operations in Macau are
members of government-managed retirement benefits schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Macau operations are
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the Macau government is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

The Group enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a
mandatory provident fund (the "“MPF”) scheme. The retirement
benefit cost for the MPF scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

During the year, retirement benefits scheme contributions paid
amounted to approximately HK$153,000 (six months period
ended 31 December 2014: HK$59,000).

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
a subsidiary

In November 2015, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest of Logo Plus Limited at a cash consideration of
HK$9,000,000. The principal activity of Logo Plus Limited is
providing an online sales channel for selling customer-designed
printed garments in Hong Kong. This acquisition is determined
by the directors of the Company to be acquisition of assets
and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiary rather than
as business combination because the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed did not constitute a business as defined
under HKFRS 3 (revised) “Business Combinations”.

24.

25.

3R 1K 48 R &1 &

AEERRFIREZEBHERREER
BFIBRT 2 HF 2 B & B R R AR A At 3
Z P8 - RPIETF AR A AR KR F
I EREMRR HHEAZBAEE -
REEBURPIRTE R 2 RKAE N2
ZE—RBEABRBEFEELPAFE R -

AEBRZRNBELZMECEREES
easERER ([8ES]) 58 - 8iE
a2 BRIR@AAA - BTN @ 1258
Bt EIRRMEELERZHFT ER
HeBakEM2ERERAMNE-

FR-ENEAREBHAIRZRD A
153,000 T (BZ T —WWFE+ A
=+—HI1E/<E A EMH : 59,0005 7T ) ©

W 85 Bt I 2 F]

ZRWENBARAWBEERAR

RZE—RF+— A ~EEWELogo
Plus Limitedz 2 #ikE - RERER
9,000,000 7t ° Logo Plus Limited Z =&
EREBANBAREE PR RN
FREEHA FIHERB R WEFEHAK
NAEFETRAEBRBHEBRGK
BEERBEMIFEBEH BARFAK
BEERFAEABEL T MERER (F
ERABBMBHmEERFEINR (LIEFT)
[EBEM]) -
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25. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 25. WiEME QA (@)
The vendors have irrevocably warranted and guaranteed to the B HE R AERTA BB R E & IE
Group that the audited consolidated net profits after tax and R BEZE-—R"F+A=+—8L
any extraordinary or exceptional items of Logo Plus Limited will VA E ' Logo Plus LimitedZ #&& & 4%
not be less than HK$400,000 for the financial year ending 31 AR REMIELEXPIINER B A
December 2016. If the actual audited consolidated net profits F#& 1~ L $2400,0005% 7T © fiiLogo Plus
after tax and any extraordinary or exceptional items of Logo Limited 2 B R & B2 ARG BR T XA 3E
Plus Limited is less than HK$400,000, then the vendors shall & H P 9N IE B 1R 4 A 4 11400,0008
pay to the Group in cash the amount equivalent to the shortfall T RIEABRASEXNRE €%
multiply by 22.5. LRZEFEFA225
Details of the net assets acquired in respect of the above LR SR AT IEE EFEF BB
transaction are summarised below: ™
HK$’000
FHET
Net assets acquired Friig & =5 E
Intangible asset mREE 9,000
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIES 52
Other payables H b e 308 (57)
8,995
Total consideration satisfied by: BRAT ARG 2 BRE:
Bank balances RITHE A 9,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEEE RS RLFAE
Cash consideration paid during the year FRAENESRE 9,000
Bank balances and cash acquired BUWEIRITHEHR LIRS (52)

8,948
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26. SUBSIDIARIES 26. i 2 =

AENBANN-F AER-F
—mEt=A=+—BZEEMT

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 FiN/N
and 2014 are as follows:

Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group Principal activity
WEARERE 2 1 B 37 4 B RTRBERE AEBELER TEER
2015 2014
—E-1% —F
Bright Able Century Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100% Inactive and not yet commence
in business
LR LEBRAA RERAES e P EEB R W ARRER
Calgary Investments Limited Samoa USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EES e RERKR
DIGITALHONGKONG. COM INC. British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100%  Inactive
RERUES v WEEB
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Bt 2B REZKR
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of an e-commerce
platform for payment
process for retail customers
and e-malls based in Hong
Kong
YEEEARAERAR Bt 2B REBZZERPRETHS
REZTFHENNTA
Global Billion Access Investments British Virgin Islands Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
RFERRERR RERAES o REZKR
Global Billion Access Trading Mainland China HK'$ 100% - Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Company Limited 14,000,000
BIERES ORI ERRA HEI A 14,000,0007% 7T RERKR
Honest (Macao Commercial Macau MOP100,000 100% 100%  Provision of consulting
Offshore) Limited services, data processing
and selling activities
3 ORMBERERE)BERAR AN 100,000:£ 7% REFZARY BERER

ﬁﬁ m/ﬁiﬁ

e
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26. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

26. B AT (&)

Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation share capital of the Group Principal activity
WEAR BB AL AR L 3t B ERTREZRA AEEEEER TEXH
2015 2014
“Z-Ef —MmF
Hong Kong Global Billion Access Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited
EERBERREBRD B 1T REZKR
Hong Kong King Sailing Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Inactive and not yet commence
in business
BEEMAERAA EB 18T PEEBRHAARED
King Sailing International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - Investment holding
RREREHS E REZKR
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% - Provision of e-commerce
platform for sales of
garments
B 1,000/ 7T RERHERHEETHENR
Fa
Pickworth Limited Samoa US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EES E REZKR
Rich Ascent International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Commodity trading
LERRERAR EB 18T HnES
Shenzhen Global Billion Access Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100% - Inactive and not yet commence
Investment Management in business
Company Limited
RIMRREEREERER HEIA AR PEEBERHARRER
1,000,0007T
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Inactive and not yet commence
in business
ERERRAA B 18T PEEBRHAARER

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

KA 2 72 48 B SR FF AT B ]
fIE AR REEZBEBES -
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 27. MR R F
2015 2014
— —EmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T TAIT
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LN 1,041 942
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE - -
1,041 942
Current assets MEEE
Amount due from subsidiaries JE Wt /BB A R 2 5RIB 74,450 30,665
Other receivables JE L L b BR 3R 981 678
Bank balances and cash WITEHB LIRS 13,278 6,562
88,709 37,905
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables FE ST E A BR 3R 2,963 924
Amount due to subsidiaries FENT B A Rl 2 ;B - 1,208
2,963 2,132
Net current assets mEEEFE 85,746 35,773
Net assets BEEFEE 86,787 36,715
Capital and reserves &% 7R % 5 1
Share capital fi&% A< 19,800 18,000
Reserves (Note) w1 (M 3E) 66,987 18,715
Equity attributable to owners of RRFHEE ANELER

the Company 86,787 36,715
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the year/period are as

27. MR R EK (&)

GEE

ARARNAFE /BRzHERESMT

follows:
Capital Special Share Accumulated
reserve reserve premium losses Total
BEXFEE BRI E B EE RiTEE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET TET FET FHET
At 1 July 2014 A\—T-—mE+A—A 7,640 1,071 8,461 (30,579) (12,507)
Total comprehensive AEH2EX LA
expense for the period > S = (9,878) (9,878)
Issue of ordinary shares 17 & @ % - - 41,100 - 41,100
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—EF
+-A=+-A 7,640 1,071 49,561 (40,457) 18,715
Total comprehensive AEEXEX LA
expense for the year - - - (74,819) (74,819)
Issue of ordinary shares  ZE{TEER - - 125,640 - 125,640
Expenses incurred BOULETBREEZ
in connection with issue X H}
of ordinary shares - - (2,549) - (2,549)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—h%F
+-A=+—8 7,640 1,071 172,652 (115,276) 66,087
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved KRB ZHBRARERZE—RNFZ

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19

February 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

WEI YUE TONG
DIRECTOR
BAE
EZFE

HATEEARESE:

ZHENG JIAN PENG
DIRECTOR
HR 2 S
EZFE

AthBEESSeHEREENE I
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28. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 September 2015, the Company entered into the

28.

BEHREH

R-E-—AFNLA-_TAA BA

Subscription Agreement with Mr. Kan Che Kin, Billy Albert AIEMEREE([RBAIGLR
(the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber has B B RBEABKRERER

conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 1,695,000,000 shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.035 per subscription share.
The subscription price of the subscription in the total amount
of HK$59,325,000 shall be payable by the Subscriber to
the Company in cash upon completion of the subscription.
The subscription was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held
on 11 January 2016. The completion of the subscription is
subject to the fulfillment of the conditions precedent under the
subscription agreement and the subscription is yet to complete
as at the date of this report.

B RARNBEGHERBERZERET
1,695,000,0008% 8% 7 - REEE B IR
BARMD0.035B T - RIBEEH L RBEE
4 %8 559,325,000 7T 15 B R B AR
ERREEHEEUNR I FARA
RBEEN_ZT—XF—A+—BE81T
ZK"ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂf#%ukﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%%ﬁ
Ko RBEIHAMFRBIRETE L RG
1%%1%5)6{&' HEK - MR ARE B
RIEEIE M ARTHK °
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Financial Summary

Year ended 30 June
BEAB=1THILFE

Six months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2014 2013 2012

BE HE

=¥-&F _"T-OF
RN + — A =+—H
EEE AR —E-mF —Z-=F —E-CF

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FEL TET TET FET
RESULTS E 3
Revenue o2k 217,068 25,865 3,792 3,066 3,003
Cost of sales HERA (216,775) (24,887) = = =
Gross profit EF 293 978 3,792 3,066 3,003
Other income Hel A 105 26 42 1 5
General and administrative —BRITRTENAK
expenses and depreciation e (31,340) (4,559) (2,240) (2,293) (2,234)
Marketing and promotion expenses T35 H# & % 1! (2,581) (92) (210) (228) (249)
Staff costs EERA (47,932) (6,924) (3,439) (3,208) (3,277)
Loss for the year/period AEE/HHEER (81,455) (10,571) (2,055) (2,662) (2,752)
At 31 December At 30 June
W+=BR=+-H RAA=1H
2015 2014 2014 2013 2012
—E-If —T-MEF —T-MF —E-=F —E-CfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FEx TET TEL FTEL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE 57,275 3,446 = = 1
Current assets REEE 26,486 34,758 4,717 6,717 10,328
Current liabilities nEaE (3,244) (1,063) (1,105) (1,050) (2,000)

80,517 37,141 3,612 5,667 8,329







	封面
	交易所創業板（「創業板」）特色
	目錄
	財務撮要
	企業資訊
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層簡介
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合股本權益變動表
	綜合現金流動表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize false
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting true
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks true
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        8.503940
        8.503940
        8.503940
        8.503940
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [595.276 841.890]
>> setpagedevice


